
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Performance and 
Administration Cabinet 

Committee

Members of the Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough 
Council are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Suite on 
Thursday, 24 March 2022 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is 
proposed to be transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

3. To declare any interest Members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda. When declaring an interest Members should state what their 
interest is. 

4. To considered whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public. 

5. Corporate Performance Report: Q3 2021-22 (Pages 9 - 20)

6. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

7. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.



Part B
Items likely to be considered in Private

None

Members

Cllr Narinderjit Singh Thandi (Chair)
Cllr Brian Francis (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Harold Craske
Dakota Dibben
Sarah Gow
Gary Harding
Leslie Hills
Samir Jassal
Elizabeth Mulheran
Gurbax Singh

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee

Wednesday, 09 February 2022   7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr Narinderjit Singh Thandi (Chair)
Cllr Brian Francis (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Harold Craske
Dakota Dibben 
Sarah Gow 
Gary Harding
Leslie Hills
Samir Jassal 
Brian Sangha 
Gurbax Singh

Darren Everden Assistant Director (Corporate Services) 
Simon Hookway Assistant Director (Communities) 
James Larkin Head of Audit & Counter Fraud Shared Services 
Pat Knight Head of Revenue & Benefits 
Ben Clarke Committee Services Officer (Minutes)
21. Apologies 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Elizabeth Mulheran; Cllr Brian Sangha 
attended as her substitute. An apology of absence was also received from the Director 
(Corporate Services).   

22. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 22 November 2022 were signed by the Chair.

23. To declare any interest Members may have in the items contained on 
this agenda. When declaring an interest Members should state what 
their interest is. 

No declarations of interest were made.

24. Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Shared Service Objectives 

Members were provided with details of the updated objectives linked to the continuing 
shared service arrangements with Medway Council.

The Head of Audit & Counter Fraud Shared Services highlighted key points from the report 
regarding the service objectives of the Shared Service and what factors contributed to the 
delivery of an effective counter fraud function; the proposal was to remove three of the five 
original service objectives. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee 9.02.2022

2

Objectives three to five were not felt to be an effective measure of continuing performance in 
relation to the shared working arrangements and it was therefore suggested that those 
objectives were removed. Objectives one and two would remain as the key measures of the 
effectiveness of the shared working arrangements. 

The performance of the revised objectives would be assessed as part of the annual review 
of the Shared Service and the findings would be reported to the Performance & 
Administration Committee in September 2022. 

Member commented on the success of Counter Fraud as a Shared Service over the last few 
years.   

Members approved the amended objectives for the shared service arrangement. 

25. Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

Members were updated on the progress made on the review of the existing Council Tax
Reduction Scheme as well as the outcome of the Equality Impact Assessment.  

The Head of Revenues & Benefits outlined key points concerning the consultation for the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme: 

 It ran for a nine-week period from 22 October 2021 to 24 December 202; the Service 
wrote to 6477 claimants together with 5000 randomly sampled non-claimant 
residents 

 537 responses were received which was a very good response rate considering the 
length of the document and the previous consultation in 2017 which received only 
387 responses. The current consultation saw a 39% increase. The rate also 
compared favourably to other local authorities; Ashford Borough Council received 88 
responses and Dartford Borough Council only received 35 responses 

 The high number of responses received allowed for a high degree of confidence that 
a balanced view had been received; of the responses received, 99.4% lived in 
Gravesham, over 79% were in receipt of Council Tax Reduction, over 33% or their 
partners were working in self employment and 88.3% were liable to pay Council Tax. 
Improvements were also made on responses received from ethnic groups

 The full list of consultation results could be found at appendix five, but the main result 
was that 41.7% wished to retain the current CTRS however that figure changed 
significantly once they considered the scheme under question four which then saw a 
57.2% agreement for the new scheme 

 All nine proposed changes received agreement ranging from over 57% to 82.8% 
 The Equality Impact Assessment was attached at appendix four; the Service 

recognised that there would be risk to some claimants and in order to mitigate the 
risk support funds would be utilised. The Service would work to identify those cases 
that would be adversely affected to the proposed changes to the CTRS using the 
Low Income Family Tracker 

In response to Members questions, the Head of Revenue & Benefits advised that: 

 31 third sector organisations were invited to the virtual meeting for consultation but 
only one organisation attended; however, ten organisations did respond to the 
consultation overall 

Page 4



Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee 9.02.2022

3

 Feedback on table 1 on page 19 of the report was that it was a very helpful grid 
scheme which made the complex subject a bit easier to understand 

 The Service developed the consultation with the assistance of a consultant who had 
worked with a number of other local authorities on their consultations; the Assistant 
Revenue & Benefits Manager and team undertook a significant amount of work 
continually recalculating and tweaking the Scheme to ensure it kept the number of 
adversely affected claimants to a minimum 

 Working with the Comms Team during the consultation was paramount to receiving 
the positive response rate as their online campaigns and videos allowed greater 
audiences to be reached. Writing to all claimants on the current CTRS and to 5000 
non-claimants that could become claimants in the future also attributed to the higher-
than-normal response rate. Excellent support was also received from Customer 
Services during the consultation. The Head of Revenues & Benefits was happy to 
advise other managers on how the consultation was created, led and advertised to 
assist in receiving higher responses in other services consultations 

 The non-claimants contacted were chosen through a random number generator in 
the system with the first 5000 being selected 

 The Service used the Low Income Family Tracker to identify cases where they were 
already in financial crisis or would move into financial crisis due to the proposed 
changes. Detailed modelling had been undertaken and those residents that would be 
adversely affected were now known to the team; they would be contacted and 
directed to the Hardship Fund 

Members commented their general approval of the Scheme and were happy that their 
previous concerns had been addressed through thorough consultation and officers had 
included many of their points in the final report. 

Members noted the detailed results of the public consultation process on the proposed
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2022-2023 together with the equality impact
Assessment. 

26. Surveillance Camera Policy 

The Committee was consulted on a draft Surveillance Camera Local Authority Code of
Practice for the Council which was attached at appendix two.  

The Assistant Director (Communities) advised that each council service operating a 
surveillance camera system was responsible for having policies and procedures for their 
use, completing Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAs) and reviewing the use of 
cameras regularly, especially when changes had taken place. In those circumstances, the 
Surveillance Camera Commissioner advised that a Local Authority’s Code of Practice (LA 
Code) was also put in place to demonstrate that it was meeting its legal obligations and 
adherence to the Surveillance Camera Commissioner’s Code of Practice and its 12 
principles.

The Assistant Director (Communities) highlighted further key points from the report regarding 
the responsibilities of officers and the guidance from the commissioner; Members were 
advised that the Policy had been taken through the Information Governance Group and is 
likely to be reported to Cabinet for agreement sometime in the future. 

Page 5



Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee 9.02.2022

4

The Assistant Director (Communities) concluded that, once the Local Authority Code of 
Practice is in place, third-party accreditation would also be sought through the Surveillance 
Camera Commissioner. 

Members had their questions answered by the Assistant Director (Communities): 

 The wording of 5.3.3 would be amended to drop the mention of operational staff 
being fully developed. The wording was intended to ensure the Strategic Responsible 
Officers were up to date with requirements and were fully trained in the processes for 
the camera systems. An assessment pack was being created for each scheme 
operated by the council.  These would include a record of training and help staff 
understanding of the processes and their responsibilities

 The Assistant Director (Communities) noted Member concern over the wording 
around 4.9.1 of ‘deterring and detecting crime’. It was suggested by a Member that 
the wording be amended to advise that the purpose of the CCTV system in the first 
instance was to promote community safety and public assurance and then promote 
the camera’s effects in detecting and deterring crime/anti-social behaviour. The 
addition of the wording would make the report a more public facing document. The 
Assistant Director (Communities) agreed that it was important to differentiate 
between the different purposes of the scheme; some were investigatory, and others 
were to protect the Community 

Members welcomed the cameras for their crime prevention ability, but concerns were raised 
that having too many cameras would infringe on the public’s privacy and would lead to 
Gravesham becoming a ‘big brother’ Borough. Members sought assurance that a careful 
balance would be struck so that there would enough cameras for public safety, but not too 
many that would infringe on the public’s right to privacy. 

In response to the concerns raised, the Assistant Director (Communities) explained that it 
was important that the Council communicated to the public the approach that was being 
taken with installation of cameras and the reasons for a camera being installed. The Council 
regularly received freedom of information (FOI) requests asking for further information on 
how many cameras were installed in Gravesham and the reasons for having then; for 
example, there are just over 50 cameras public space cameras operational in the Borough 
which wasn’t a huge number. All of the cameras were regularly reviewed in relation to 
incidents and could be removed if there was no longer a valid need for them to be in their 
current position. It would be beneficial to conduct a piece of work around communicating 
messages regarding CCTV cameras to the public. 

The Assistant Director (Communities) explained that the Council had no powers over CCTV 
cameras installed on private property, but the Council were able to place mobile cameras in 
certain areas and they could be used to test out the usefulness of the position of the camera 
and if a permanent camera was needed. The Assistant Director (Communities) agreed to 
circulate the costs of installing and maintaining a CCTV camera to Members outside of the 
Committee. 

The decision to install a CCTV camera was made by officers at the Council and a number of 
factors were considered during the process; when a request was received crime incidents 
were reviewed in the area requested to assess whether a camera could be justified. A 
comprehensive review of the public space CCTV scheme was also carried out within the last 
two years.  Consideration needs to be given to how the public are engaged with future 
reviews. 

Page 6



Performance and Administration Cabinet Committee 9.02.2022

5

In response to a Member’s question, the Assistant Director (Communities) advised that 
Members are appointed as a Lay Panel of Visitors to visit the control room where the 
Borough’s public space CCTV cameras are monitored.  Arrangements could be made for 
other Members to view the operation. The control room had certain protocols in place around 
monitoring, which exclude following random members of the public; such monitoring only 
takes place when individuals of interest have been identified, for example when given 
intelligence from the Police. 

Following a short debate by Members on privacy vs safety with regards to CCTV cameras, 
Cllr Sangha explained an example to the Committee to alleviate certain concerns over too 
many cameras. Cllr Sangha had requested a CCTV camera be placed in Pelham ward to 
deter low level drug dealers and he advised that it was a very comprehensive process which 
required local residents to be engaged with before a camera could even be considered. In 
the end a mobile camera was placed and after 6 months it was evaluated and removed as it 
had severed its purpose by deterring low level drug incidents completely. 

Members noted the draft Code of Practice. 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 20:17pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Performance & Administration Committee

Date: 24 March 2022

Reporting officer: Pat Knight - Head of Revenues and Benefits 

Subject: Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2021-22

Purpose and summary of report: 
To present Members of the Performance and Administration Committee with an update 
against the Performance Management Framework, as introduced within the council’s 
Corporate Plan, for Quarter Three 2021-22 (October to December 2021).

Recommendations:
1. This report is for information purposes only. 

Key Implications:
Item Implications
Legal The council’s Corporate Plan is an integral part of the authority’s 

policy framework as defined by the Constitution. The new Plan will 
ensure the council has in place an effective framework to deliver 
its responsibilities and ensure better results for vulnerable local 
residents, with the assistance of relevant partner agencies.

Finance and Value for 
Money

There are no significant costs associated with the monitoring of 
the Corporate Plan from which council activities should be based 
and which therefore should be accounted for as part of on-going 
financial planning processes.

Corporate Plan The council’s adopted Corporate Plan sets the strategic ambition 
and objectives for the authority over the 2019-23 period. This 
report provides the Committee with a quarterly assessment of how 
the council is delivering against its objectives through its 
Performance Management Framework.

Climate Change Climate change as a strategic theme underpins the projects, 
initiatives and work involved in the delivery of the council's 
Corporate Plan. As a core policy commitment of the council, 
efforts in this area are represented within corporate objective #1: 
People.

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



2

1. Introduction

1.1 In October 2019 the council formally adopted its Corporate Plan for 2019-23. The 
plan sets out the authority’s ambition for the borough, complete with a suite of 
corporate objectives and supporting policy commitments that will shape the 
council’s activities over the four-year period.  

1.2 In order to evaluate if the council is effectively achieving against its stated policy 
commitments, and is ultimately delivering consistently high-quality services, a 
sound performance management process is required to be implemented. 

1.3 Developed by senior council officers and Cabinet portfolio holders, the council’s 
Corporate Plan presents a Performance Management Framework (PMF) that 
forms the basis of reporting corporate performance to Members and residents.  

2. Performance management: process

2.1 The effective management of the council relies upon good quality and timely 
performance information on which to base informed executive decisions. 

2.2 Appendix 1 to this report provides the Performance and Administration Committee 
with an overview of the council’s performance against the Corporate Plan for 
Quarter Three 2021-22, covering the period October to December 2021. 

2.3 Statistical performance over the period is presented separately in tabular and 
graphical form for all indicators. Where any data is not presented, this will relate 
either to those indicators reported on an annual basis or, alternatively, where data 
has not been submitted in time for the presentation of the report. Any outturns 
where data has been unable to be reported will be presented within the next 
appropriate reporting cycle. 

2.4 Alongside statistical content, the Appendix provides supporting detailed qualitative 
updates outlining what activity the council has delivered, and what is to be taken, 
to successfully realise the Corporate Plan’s objectives and policy commitments 
relating to the portfolio for the 2019-23 period.   

2.5 This report is for information purposes only.

3. Appendices

3.1 The following documents are to be published with the report: 

Appendix 1: Performance and Administration Portfolio - Q3 2021-22

4. Background papers

 Gravesham Borough Council: Corporate Plan 2019-23. 

 Gravesham Borough Council: PMF 2019-23.

Lead Officer: Pat Knight - Head of Revenues and Benefits 

Email: pat.knight@gravesham.gov.uk

Page 10

https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/corporateplan
https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/performance


3

Secondary Implications
Risk Assessment Implementation of a PMF allows the council to evidence how successful it is in 

achieving against its stated objectives and provides residents accountability in how 
it is administering its resources.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.
No.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
Click here to start typing

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
Click here to start typing

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No.

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No.

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Crime and Disorder Community safety is an integral theme of the Corporate Plan and work by the 
council in this area, alongside its key partners, will go towards delivering corporate 
objective #1: People.

Digital and website 
implications

In terms of the council's performance management framework, digital implications 
are represented and assessed through the outturns relating to  'PI 51: online self-
help forms'.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

The council's work in safeguarding children and vulnerable adults helps contribute 
towards delivering corporate objectives #1: People and #2: Place. 

Page 11

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Gravesham Borough Council - Corporate Plan 2019-23 00Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

P E R F O R M A N C E  &  A D M I N
P O R T F O L I O

Performance   report 
Q  3  :  2  0  2  1  -  2  2

Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

P
age 13



P I  23

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 12.6 12.7 12.2 12.8

2020-21 15.9 13.8 12.8 12.4

2021-22 14.1 14.2 14.6

2022-23

P I  24 Average processing time for changes of circumstance in Housing Benefit claims (days)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 5.2 4.9 4.8 4.0

2020-21 3.6 3.3 3.4 2.9

2021-22 6.8 5.7 5.3

2022-23

#1 PEOPLE 
a proud community; where residents can call a safe, clean and 

attractive borough their home.
P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

 1. Put our customers first: implement a suite of quality and effective frontline services 
accessible to all. 

Average processing time taken for Housing Benefit claims (days)The service has continued to face a number of additional resourcing pressures in response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic, which has affected the performance of the time taken to assess both 
new claims and change of circumstances. Eligibility assessment and payment of Test and Trace 
Self-Isolation Grants (now extended to March 2022) remain a priority. 

Further pressures include the requirement for full case reviews; assessment and application of 
hardship payments along with key projects such as the low-income family tracker and proposals 
for a new Council Tax Reduction scheme from 2022-2023. 

The service has reviewed its structure and is currently looking to recruit to a number of posts in 
order to robustly deal with the challenges it is facing.

* PI 23 Average Processing time for housing benefit claims. This is 14.6 days, compared to the 
previous year Q3 performance of 12.2 days (which resulted in an outturn of 12.4 days).  This 
compares favourably to the latest available data (Q2) nationally averaging 20.0 days and Kent 
districts averaging 19.0 days.

* PI 24 Average processing time to assess changes of circumstances for housing benefit 
claims. This stands at 5.3 days, compared to the previous year Q3 performance of 3.4 days 
(which resulted in an outturn of 2.4 days). This compares favourably to the latest available data 
(Q2) nationally averaging 8.0 days and Kent districts averaging 8.0 days.

5

10

15

20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2

4

6

8

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 14



P I   26 Total number of reported corporate complaints

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 73 82 44 56

2020-21 41 52 52 64

2021-22 83 79 43

2022-23

 2. Put our customers first: implement a suite of quality and effective frontline services 
accessible to all. 

During Q3 there were 43 complaints compared to 79 in Q2, which were distributed as follows:

In terms of administration, 77% of those listed above were closed inside the set policy timescale 
during Q3.

In processing terms, from Q4 there will be no further Stage 3 complaints as the new procedure 
of just two stages will be imbedded. Stage One complaints will continue to be replied to within 
10 working days from the date of acknowledgement, with a deadline for Stage Two responses of 
20 days from the date of acknowledgement. 

From Q4 we will also report on the number of compliments across the authority to support this 
contextual update.

#1 PEOPLE 
a proud community; where residents can call a safe, clean and 

attractive borough their home.
P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

40

60

80

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 15



P I  50 Total number of people signed up to citizens access

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 103 1,519 2,757 4,484

2020-21 5,453 6,328 7,211 8,594

2021-22 9,811 10,681 11,450

2022-23

an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to continuous service 
improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance environment.

#3 PROGRESS

0

4,000

8,000

12,000

16,000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 16



P I  49 % of posts involved in shared service arrangements

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 6.1%

2020-21 6.0%

2021-22

2022-23

* Microsoft 365 Project:
The M365 platform enables officers and Members greater flexibility to work collaboratively, start 
conversations and host remote meetings all within a single platform. During quarter three the 
rollout of M365 was completed for all officers and Members.  

Training has been provided to all those who have been migrated to the new system and this has 
proven to be very popular.  

Work has started on undertaking a post-implementation review of the Microsoft 365 project in 
order to identify key learning points for consideration in future projects.  The findings of this 
review will be due in the final quarter of 2021-22.

* Corporate Telephone System Replacement:
Work has continued in the reparation for the delivery of a new corporate telephone system 
which will replace not only the back office telephone system but the Customer Contact Centre 
system as well.

Testing of the back office system has been completed which has included testing of voice mail, 
hunt groups and other functionality to ensure that the system works not only in the office but 
supports the council’s hybrid working approach with officers at home.  Guidance for officers has 
been developed and information is now published on the council’s Intranet for officers to review 
at a time which is convenient for them.  

Attention is now turning to the configuration of the Customer Contact Centre system to enable 
both systems to go live at the same time with minimal disruption.

* SOCITM Review of IT Services:
SOCITM (the Society of Information Technology Managers (UK)) have recently undertaken a 
review of the council’s IT Services and in response to their findings, an action plan is being 
developed which will result in changes to the way in which the IT Services function is delivered 
at Gravesham.  This review is in its early stages and updates will be provided as required 
throughout the project.

Annual indicator

1. Deliver a more resilient, creative and cost-effective council: implement a programme of 
‘continuous change’, overhauling business processes and delivering new, innovative service 
design.

an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to continuous service 
improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance environment.

#3 PROGRESSP O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

0%

5%

10%

15%

2019-20 2020-21

P
age 17



P I  55 % of internal audit recommendations implemented

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 70.6% 75.0% 73.1% 76.2%

2020-21 62.5% 67.7% 62.5% 73.5%

2021-22 37.5% 63.6% 63.6%

2022-23

2. Drive service improvement and corporate governance: a robust and benchmarked 
performance management framework, delivered by services underpinned with sound internal 
controls. 

Internal Audit update - James Larkin 

an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to continuous service 
improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance environment.

Counter Fraud

There have been vacancies in year for both Counter Fraud Officer and Intelligence analyst posts, 
however, all vacancies have now been filled successfully with a replacement Intelligence analyst 
being the last to start on 01 February 2022.

Investigation activity has moved forward despite the various periods of vacancy and during the 
quarter has led to the following;
• Additional council tax (historic liability) of £37,484.44 (£141,207.97 year to date)
• Additional council tax liability of £11,021.83 for future years. (£61,352.86 year to date)
• Civil penalties totalling £280.00 (£1,750 year to date)
• Additional Business Rates (historic liability) £17,536.35 (£24,458.11 year to date)
• Business Grant £10,000

Internal Audit 
Despite a loss of resources due to vacancies, progress continued throughout Q3 with 43% of 
the agreed assurance reviews now delivered (audit fieldwork completed), and a further 24% 
underway. 

The service restructure, which saw one of the internal Audit Team Leader posts replaced with a 
Senior Internal Auditor to create more operational resource, was completed in Q3 with one of 
the existing Internal Auditors successful during the interview process. Interviews for a 
replacement Internal Auditor also took place and the new postholder is due to start in February 
2022.
 
The Internal Audit team also has a performance indicator relating to the implementation of 
agreed recommendations. At the end of quarter two 2021-22, it was reported that 12 
recommendations remained outstanding. Of those, the following recommendations have now 
been implemented;
• A review of arrangements to present IT security policies to staff. 

A cumulative total of 44 recommendations were due to be implemented by the end of Q3 and as 
of 31 December 2021, 16 of these remained outstanding relate to:
• A review of the information relating to Flexi, TOIL and overtime on the intranet,
• Managers being reminded of their responsibilities in relation to Flexi, TOIL and overtime,
• The creation of a council overtime policy document,
• Service managers being reminded of overtime rates, including guidelines for part time staff and 
working time directives,
• A review of the debt data matching process and tools involved,
• A review of the process for updating customer records following corporate debt action,
• The corporate model procedures in the lone working policy being updated,
• Officers being reminded of responsibility to record sufficient data relating to visit for health & 
safety purposes,
• Managers being reminded of responsibility for making regular contact with officers conducting 
visits away from the office,
• Records of visits undertaken being maintained after the event, 
• Staff being reminded to undertake all relevant security checks before conducting visits,
• Managers undertaking regular quality checks to ensure records relating to visits are accurate 
and addressed in 1-2-1 meetings,
• A secondment agreement being put in place for the new Monitoring Officer,
• A review of the constitution to ensure consistent reference to Member training,
• Review of shared service agreements to ensure KPI’s remain realistic,
• Consideration being given to having Non-Exec Directors on the Rosherville Board.

Progress made towards implementing outstanding recommendations is monitored on a quarterly 
basis, through reports to the council’s Management Team. Details of all recommendations 
agreed, implemented and outstanding are provided to the council’s Finance & Audit Committee 
as part of the quarterly and annual A&CF update reports. All recommendations that remain 
outstanding more than six months after their agreed implementation date are now specifically 
highlighted with updates from the relevant services provided.

Counter Fraud update - James Larkin 

#3 PROGRESSP O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

25%

50%

75%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

P
age 18



P I  56 % of information requests completed within statutory deadline

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 86% 86% 86% 84%

2020-21 83% 88% 84% 86%

2021-22 84% 79% 88%

2022-23

an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to continuous service 
improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance environment.

#3 PROGRESS

Q3 saw the commencement of the council's service business planning process for 2022/23. 

Working in conjunction with the budget setting process, business plans are established to 
provide a road map for each service to work towards in the year ahead; identifying the key 
milestones, projects and initiatives and, equally, the risks to service delivery, alongside the 
respective resources required. Business plans also act as a key component of the staff 
performance framework, enabling all officers the opportunity to identify how their activities and 
level of individual performance contributes to the delivery of the council's Corporate Plan 
commitments.

A key part to business planning as a process is the requirement for an assessment of each 
service's statutory duties. This ensures effective controls are planned for and ultimately put in 
place to discharge the variety of legislative duties the authority is responsible for. An example of 
such a control includes council policy formation, where legislative demands include the need 
either to have an appropriate policy in place, or that any policy must account for specific 
statutory duties – or both. 

The service business planning process provides the Corporate Management Team the required 
assurance these legal requirements are captured as part of the timetable of activity for each 
service.

3. Successfully manage key business risks: embed a culture of compliance with all policy, 
constitutional and legislative demands.

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

70%

80%

90%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22 P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Corporate Performance Report: Q3 2021-22
	Appendix 1 - Performance & Admin Portfolio - Q3 2021-22
	Q3 2021-22





